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UNITED STATES REGION IX 
ENVIRONMTh1 AL PROTECTION AGENC"M:GI~t.f[frEAR!1I6 ct.EIUI 

REGION IX 

In the matter of ) U.S. EPA Docket No. 
) RCRA- 9-2011-0003 

L&M Optical Disc West, LLC ) 
) ORDER ON MOTION FOR 

EPA lD No. CARoo0095547 ) DEFAULT JUDGMENT 
) 

Respondent. ) 

INTRODUCTION 

This proceeding arises under Section 3008 ofthe Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act (RCRA), as amended, 42U.S.C. § 6928. This proceeding is governed by the Consolidated 
Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties. Issuance of 
Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation, Termination, or Suspension of 
Permits (Consolidated Rules). 40 CFR §§ 22.1-22.32. 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

On January 25,2011, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA or 
Complainant) filed a Determination o[Violation, Compliance Order and Notice ofRight to 
Request a Hearing against L&M Optical Disc West, LLC (Respondent). In sum, Complainant 
alleged five RCRA violations: (1) Count I - Failure to Conduct Weekly Inspections, in violation 
of 22 C.C.R. §§ 66262.34(a)(I)(A) and 66265.174' [40 CFR §§ 262.34(a)(i) and 265.174J; (2) 
Ccunt ll- F.ilure to Comply "ith Training Requirements, in violation of22 C.C.R. §§ 
6626234(a)(4), 66265.16(c), and 66265.16(dXI )-(4) [see also 40 C.F.R. §§ 262.34(a)(4), 
265.16(c), and 265.16( d)(l )-(4)]; (3) Count III Failure to Have 0 Complete Contingency Plan, 
in violation of 22 C.C.R. §§ 66262.34(a)(4) and 66265.51(.) [see .lso 40 C.F.R. §§ 262.34(a)(4) 
and 265.51(8)]; (4) Count IV - Failure to File a Biennial Report, in violation of22 C.C.R. §§ 
66262.41(b) [see also 40 C.F.R. §§ 262.41(0)]; and (5) Count V - Failure to Mark or Lahel 

, All citations to the "C.CR." refer to Division 4.5 ofTitle 22 ofthe current California 
Code of Regulations. Complainant is enforcing California hazardous waste management 
program requirements as approved and authorized hy the United States on August I, 1992 (see 
57 FR 32726, July 23, 1992) and September 26,2001 (66 FR 49118, September 26. 2001). 
Corresponding Federal citations are provided in brackets, 
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Containers of Hazardous Waste, in violation of22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(0)(3), (e)(I)(E) and (f) [40 
C.F.R. § 26234(0)(2) and (3) and (e)(1 )(li)]. 

40 CFR § 22.1 5(a) required Respondent \() tile an answer to the Complaint "ithin thirty 
(30) days after service of the Complaint. Complainant completed service of the Compl.int on 
January 28, 201 1. However, Respondent failed \() answer the Complaint. 

On March 21,2011, Complainant filed. Motion for Defuult pursuant to 40 CFR § 22.17, 
seekiog a finding of default in this case and proposing a penalty of $26,500. Respondent did not 
oppose Complainant's Motion for Default. 

On April 30,2012, the Regional Judicial Officer returned Complainant's Motioll, 
requesting Complainant submit a renewed motion for default order with any updates 
Complainant deems necessary. 

On May 16,2012, Complainant submitted a renewed Motion for Default.' 

On May 30, 2012, the Regional Judicial Officer received a letter dated May IS, 2012 
from Rosa Gutierrez. Ms, Gutierrez did not provide any contact infonnation in her letter and she 
did not identify her relationship \() Respondent. Ms. Gutierrez merely stated, "In response Ie the 
letter dated May 16,2012, L&M Optical Disc West is closed, It hss ceased all operations as of 
January 31, 201 I." 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

Pursuant to 40 CFR § 22.17 and based upon the entire record in this malter, I make the following 
factual findings: 

I. Respondent, L&M Optical Dis<: West LLC ("L&M" or "Respondent") operates a facility 
for manufucturing of DVDs located at 24865 Avenue Rockefeller, Valencia, California 9\355 
(the "Facility"), 

2, Respondent is a person" as defined in 22 C.C.R, § 66260.10 [see also 40 C.F.R. § 
260,1 0]; and an operator of a facility as defmed in 22 C.C.R. § 66260.10 [see also 40 C.F.R. § 
260.10]. 

2: Complainant served its Renewed Motion for Default Order. via UPS Overnight Mail, on 
May 16,2012. 40 C.F.R. § 22.7(c) provides that the time allowed for responsive filings is 
extended by five calendar days where a document Is served by first class mail or by commercial 
delivery service, The five additional days is not available where a document is served by 
overnight delivery, as was this Motion for Renewed Default Order. 
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6626L3 [see a/so ReRA § 1004(5), and 40 C.F.R. §§260.l0 and 261.3]. These hazardous 
wastes include, but are not limited to, 0001 (ignitable), D002 (corrosive), (D01I)(silver) and 
FOD3 (non-halogenated solvents). 

4, Complainant issued a Determination of Violation. Compliance Order and Notice of Right 
to Request a Hearing (Complaint) against Respondent on January 25, 2011. 

5, Pursuant to 40 CFR § 22. 15(a), Respondent was required to file an answer to the 
Complaint within thirty (30) days after service of the Complaint. Complainant completed 
service ufthe Complaint on January 28, 2011. 

6. To date, neither Complainant nor the Regional Judicial Clerk has received Respondent's 
answer to the Compiaint 

7. On March 21,2011, Complainant filed a Motion for Default Order, seeking a finding of 
default in this case and proposing a penalty of $26,500. The I\'iotion included an analysis of each 
count and a proposed penalty, applying the 2003 RCRA Civil Perudty Policy (0 the counts. 

8. To date, neither Complainant nor the Regional Judicial Clerk has received a response to 
the Motion for Default. 

DISCUSSION 

The Consolidated Rules, 40 CFR § 22. I 7(a), applies to motions for default, and provide 
in pertinent part: 

(a) Default. A party may he found to he in default; after motion, upon failure (0 

file a timeJy answer to the complaint; ... Default by respondent constitutes, for 
purposes of the proceeding only, an admission ofaB facts alleged in the complaint 
and a waiver of an facts alleged in the complaint and a waiver of respondent's 
right to contest such factual allegations. 

(e) Demu!t Order. \Vhen the Presiding Ot1icer finds that default has occurred, he 
shall issue a default order against the defaulting party as to any or all parts of the 
proceeding lUlless the record shows good cause why a default order should not be 
issued. 

The Consnlidated Rules at 40 CFR § 22. 17(a) require that if a default has occurred, tho 
Presiding Officer shall issue a default order against the defaulting party as to any or aU parts of 
the proceeding W11ess the record shows good cause why a det1lUJt order should not be issued. 
Respondent has made 110 showing that good cause exists to deteat Complainant's Motion for 
Default Order. 
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The Motion included an analysis of each count and a proposed penalty, applying the 2003 
ReRA Civii Penalty Policy to the counts. 

The Consolidated Rules at 40 CFR § 22.27(b) applies to the assessmelll of a civil 
penalty: 

If the Presiding Officer determines that a violation has occurred and the complaint 
s.eeks a civil penalty, the Presiding Oftlcer shall determine the amount of the 
recommended penaJty based on the evidence in the record and in accordance with 
any penalty criteria set forth in the Act. The Presiding Officer shall consider any 
civil penalty guidelines issued under the Act. ...If the respondent has defaulted, 
the Presiding Officer shall not assess a penalty greater than that proposed by the 
complainant in the complaint, the prchcaring information exchange or the motion 
for default, whichever is less, 

Section 3008(g) ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(g), as ameoded by the Debt Collections 
Improvement Act of 1996, 40 CFR Part 19, authorizes a civil penalty ofup to THIRTY·TWO 
THOUSAND, FIVE HU'lDRFD DOLLARS (532,500) tbr violations that occur after March 15, 
2004, 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13,2004), and authorizes a civil penalty of up to 
THfRTY,SEVEN THOUSAND, FrVE HUNDRFD DOLLARS ($37,500) for violations that 
occur after Jan. 11, 2009, 73 Fed. Reg. 75340 (Dec. 11, 2008). Compfainant requests tIlat the 
Administrator assess a civi1 penalty against Respondent ofup to $32,500 per day, as appropriate, 
for each day during \vhich a violation cited in the above outlined Counts continued up to (and 
including) January 11, 2009, and up to $37,500 for each day during which a violation continued 
after January 11,2009. 

The penalty caiculations system establishc'd through EPA's June 2003 RCRA Civil 
Penalty Policy ("Penaity Policy") is based upon Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U,S,C. § 6928. 
Under this section. the seriousness of the violation and any good faith efforts to comply with 
applicable requirements are to be considered in assessing a penalty_ The Penalty Policy consists 
of: (1) detennining a gravity-based penalty for a particular violation from a penalty assessment 
matrix, (2) adding a "multi-day" component, as appropriate, to account for a violation's duration, 
(3) adjusting the sum ofthe gravity-based and multi-day components, up or down, for case 
specific circumstances. and (4) adding to this amount the appropriate economic benefit gained 
through non-compliancc. The Environmental Appeals Board (EAB) ha, emphasized that the 
agency's penalty policies should be applied wherever possible because such policies "assure that 
statutory factors are taken into account and are designed to assure that penalties arc assessed in a 
lair and consistent manner," MA. Bruder & Sons, Inc, 10 EA.D. 598, 613 (EAB 2002). 

The gravity-based component of the Penalty Policy is determined by considering two 
factors: (1) the potential for hann, and (2) the extent of deviation from the statutory or regulatory 
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requirement. See Penalty Policy, p. 12. The potential for harnl and the extent ofdeviation 
components may be characterized as "major", '~moderate", or "minor"> according to standards set 
forth by the Penalty Policy. [d. at 15-18. The gravity-based component is seleete<! from a 
pecuniary range for the approptiate cell. Id. at 18. EPA revised the penalty matrices set forth in 
the 2003 Penalty Policy for violations that occur after March 15,2004 and after Jaruary 12, 
2009. The Penalty Policy provides that the selection of the exact penalty amount within the ceil 
is left to the discretion of enforcement personnel, so they may adapt the penalty to the gravity of 
the violation and its surrounding circlUllstances. Id. at 19. 

The Penalty PoHcy also provides a multi-day calculation for continuing violations, Id., p. 
23. Aik'T the gravltYMbased penalty is calculated, including any multi-day component, 
enforcement personnel may adjust the penalty upward or dm....'l1ward to retleet the particular 
circumstances surrounding the violation, such as good faith efforts to comply, degree of 
willfulness or negligence. history of noncompliance, ability to pay, other unique factors, and 
supplemental environmental projects. ld., p. 3. 

The Penalty Policy also mandates the recapture of any significant economic benefit of 
noncompliance that accrues to a violator. The economic benefit component should be calculated 
and added to the gravity-based penalty component when a violation results in significant 
economic benefit to the vio1ator. Id, p, 28. In the interest of simplifYing and exped.iting an 
enforcement action, enforcement personnel may forego calculating the economic benefit 
component where it appears that the arnowlt of the component is likely to be less than the 
amount specitied by the Penalty Policy for all violations alleged in tbe complaint. id., p.28. 
Likewise, it is not necessary to calculate an economic benefit for a violation if the economic 
benefit is estimated to be below $2,000. Jd. 

Section 22.17(c) of the Consolidate<! rules, 40 CFR § 22. 17(c), provides that when a 
respondent is found to be in default, "The relief proposed in the complaint or the motion tor 
default shall be ordered unless the requested relief is clearly inconsistent with the record ofihe 
procee<ling or the Act." When reaching a penalty detennination, Section 22.27(b) of the 
Consolidated Rules stares that the Presiding Officer shall consider any evidence in the record and 
any civil penalty guidelines issue<! under the Act. The Presiding Officer shall explain in detail 
how the assessed penalty corresponds to any penalty criteria set forth in the Act. As stated 
above, Section 22.27(b) of the Consolidated Rules prohibits the Presiding Officer from assessing 
a penalty greater than that proposed in the complaint, the prehearing infonnatioll exchange or the 
motion for default. whichever is less. 

Pursuant to 40 CFR § 22. 1 7(a), a default by a respondent constitutes an admission of all 
facts alleged in the Complaint. See also 40 CFR § 22.15(d) (respondent's f.ilure to admit, deny 
or explain any material factual allegatIon contained in the Complaint constitutes an admission of 
the allegation); in the Malter ofK Industries, inc., Docket No. RCRA-06-2003-0915, 2005 RJO 
Lexis 109 (March 2, 2005): in ro Maller ofAero Design, inc. Docket No. RCRA-04-2002-4006, 

5 




2003 EPA RJO Lexis 12 (April I, 2003). 

Count I - Failure to Conduct Weekly Ilispedions 

During a January 12~ 20t 0 inspection, facility representative, George Lin, informed the 
inspectors that the facility does not have a system set up to inspect the hazardous waste storage 
area on a weekly basis and the facility had not been conducting weekly inspections of its 
hazardous waste storage areas, 22 C.C.R. § 66265.174 requires that the facility cunduct weekly 
inspections of its hazardous waste storage areas (see also 40 C.P,R. § 265.174). 

I) Gravity-Based Penalty 

A) Potential for Harm: Pursuant to the Penalty Policy, a >'J\.'linor" potential for harm to 
the environment and the regulatory program means that the violation poses or may pose a 
relatively low risk ofexposure of humans or other environmental receptors to hazardous waste or 
constituents; and/or the actions may have a small adverse effect on statutory or regulatory 
purposes or procedures for implementing the RCRA program. See Penalty Policy at 15. In the 
instant case, Complainant claims tbat Respondent's failure to conduct weekly inspections. in 
violation of22 C.C.R. § 66265.174 [see also 40 C.F.R. § 265.174] should be characterized as 
"Minor" under the Penalty Policy, As the Presiding Oflicer in this action, I agree that the 
potential harm resulting from this violation is properly characterized as "Minor" on the record 
before me. 

B) Extent of Deviation: The Penalty Policy defines a "Major" extent of deviation as a 
situation wherein the violator deviates from requirements of the reguIation or statute to such an 
extent that most, or important aspects, of the requirements are not met, resulting in substantial 
noncompliance. See Penalty Policy at 15, Respondent's failure to have a system set up to inspect 
weekly storage area on a weekly basis and the facility had not been conducting weekly 
inspections of its hazardous waste storage areas constituted a "Major" deviation from the 
requirement to conduct weekly inspections. 

The Penalty Policy provides that after ctassifying the potential for harm and the extent of 
deviation, EPA enforcement personnel have the discretion to select the exact amount within a 
particular cell of the gravity penalty matrix so they may adapt the penalty amount ofthe gravity 
of the violation and its surrounding circumstances, Sce Penalty Policy at 19, Enforcement 
personnel should analyze and rely on case-specific factors in selecting a dollar figure from this 
range. Such factors include the seriousness of the violation, the environmental sensitivity of the 
areas potentially threatened by the violation, the size and sophislication of the violator, the 
number ofdays of violation, and other relevant matters. 

The matrix value jn the Penalty Policy for violations that are mil1orimajor is $2130 to 
$4250, Complainanfs selection of$3190, which represents the middle of the Minor 
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PmentiailMajor Deviation matrix cell, is consistent with the record of the proceeding and with 
RCRA, 

2) Multi-Day Penalty Calculation 

This violation continued for at least one day, January 12.201 O. However~ Complainant is 
not seeking a penalty for multi-days. Accordingly; the penalty for this count is $3,190. 

Count II ,'ailure to Comply with Training Requirement 

At the time of the January 12,2010 CE1, the facility had an employee, Travis Medrano, 
who was responsible for managing the hazardous waste on the premiSeS. According to the 
facility representative, Mr. Medrano had not received any initial or refresher training on proper 
management procedures for hazardous waste. At the time of the January 12, 2010 eEl, the 
training records did not include the job title and position description for Mr, Medrano1s position. 

22 C.C.R, § 66265,16(0) requires that facility personnel must successfully complete 
training, including aIIDua] refresher training, to perfonn their duties in a way that ensures the 
facility's compliance with the requirements: ofapplicable hazardous waste law. 22 CC.R 
§ 66265.16(d)(1-4) requires that the owner or operatot ofa faclHty maintain training records at 
the tucility [see also 40 c'F,R, § 265.16(c) and 40 C,F,R, § 265, 16(d)(1-4)], The records are 
required to include the job title for each position at the facility related to hazardous waste 
management and the name of the employee filling each job, 22 C,CR, § 66265,l6(d)(I) [see 
also 40 C.F.R., §265,l6(d)(IJ]' 

Respondent failed to comply with the requirements for training employees with the 
requirements of applicable hazardous: waste law or maintain training records at the facility. 

t} Gravity-Based Penalty 

A) Potential for Harm: A "Moderate'" potential for hann to the environment and the 
regulatory program means that the violation poses or may pose a significant risk ofexposure of 
humans or other environmental receptors to hazardous waste or constltuents or the actions have 
or may have a significant adverse effect on statutory or regulatory purposes or procedures for 
implementing the ReRA program. Complainant accurately concluded that this violation posed a 
"Moderate" potential for hann. 

B) Extent of Deviation: Respondent's failure to comply \vith the requirements for 
training employees with the requirements of applicable hazardous waste law or maintain training 
records at the facility supports categorizing this violation as a "Moderate" deviation from the 
regulatory requirement, which means that the violator significantly deviates from requirements 
of the regulation or statute but some ufthe requirements are implemented as intended, 
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The matrix value in the Penalty Policy for violations: that are Moderate 
Potential/Moderate Deviation is $7090 to $11.330. Complainant's selection 0[$9210, which 
represents 1he middle of the Moderate Potential/Moderate Deviation matrix celJ, is consistent 
with the record of the proceeding and "ith RCRA. 

2) Multi~Day Penalty Calculation 

This violation continued for at least one day, January 12.2010. However, Complainant is 
not seeking a penalty for multi-days, Acoordlngly, the penalty for this count is $9120, 

CQunt IU- Failure to Have a Complete Contingency Plan 

At the time of the January 12, 2010 CEI, Respondent did not have a complete 
contingency plan, White the facHity contingency plan included important emergency 
infonnation. including names ofemergency coordinators and evacuation routes, it lacked 
required information. including the description and location of emergency equjpment and local 
emergency telephone numbers. 

22 C.C.R. § 66265.51(a) requires that each owner or operator must have a contingency 
plan for his or her facility. which includes the description and 1ocation of emergency equipment 
and local emergency telephone numbers [see also 40 C.F.R § 265.5 I (a)]. 

I) Gravitv-B ..ed Penaltv 

A) Potential for Harm: Pursuant to the Penalty Policy. a '-Minor" potential for harm to 
the environment and the regulatory program means that the violation poses: or may pose a 
relatively low risk of exposure of humans or other environmental receptors to hazardous waste or 
constituents; and/or the actions may have a small adverse effect on statutory or regulatory 
purposes or procedures for implementing the RCRA program. See Penalty Policy at 15. In the 
instant case, Complainant claims that Respondent's failure to provide a complete contingency 
plan should be characterized as "Minor" under the Penalty Policy, As the Presiding Oflicer in 
this action, I agree that the potential harm resulting from this violation is propedy characterized 
as "Minor" on the record before me. 

B) Extent of Deviation: Respondent's failure to comply with the requirements for 
providing a complete contingency plan supports categorizing this vio1ation as a ""Moderate" 
deviation from the regulatory requirement, which means that the violator significantly deviates 
from requirements of the regulation or statute but some of the requirements are impl~nted as 
intended. 

The matrix value in the Penalty Policy for violations that are Minor Potentia1/Moderate 
Deviation is $710 to $2130. Complainant's ,el""tion of $1420, which represents the middle of 
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the Minor Potential/Moderate Deviation matrix cell, is consistent \'¥lth the record ofthe 
proceeding and with RCRA. 

2) Multi-Day Penalty ealculatiQn 

This violation continued for at least one day, January 12, 2010. However, Complainant is 
not seeking a multi-day penalty so the penalty for Count 1II is $1420. 

Count IV ~ Failure to File Biennial Report 

At the time of the January 12.2010 eEl, Respondent had not filed a biennial report for 
2007. 22 C.C.R. § 66262.4l(a) requires that eru:h owner or operator file a biennial report for the 
hllZllfdous WllSte generated the prior year [see also 40 C.F.R. § 26.2.4l(a)]. 

I) Gravity-Based Penalty 

A) Potential for Harm: A "Moderate" potential for harm to the environment and the 
regulatory program means that the violation poses or may pose a significant risk of exposure of 
humans or other environmental receptors: to hazardous waste or constituents or the actions have 
or may have a significant adverse effect 011 statutory or regulatory purposes Of procedures for 
implementing the RCRA program, Complainant accurately concluded that this violation pose.d a 
"Moderate" potential for harm. 

B) Extent of Deviation: The Penalty Policy defines a ""Major" extent of deviation as a 
situation wherein the violator deviates from requirements of the regulation or statute to such an 
extent that mos4 or important aspects, of the requirements are not met, resulting in substantial 
noncompliance. See Penalty Policy at 15. Respondent's complete failure to file a biennial report 
constituted a "Major" deviation from the requirement to file such reports. 

Complainant's selection of$12,250, which represents the middle of the Moderate 
PotentiaVMaj(Jf Deviation matrix cell, is consistent with the record of the proceeding and with 
ReRA. 

2) Multi~Day Penalty Calculation 

This violation continued for at least one day, March 1,2008. Complainant is not seeking 
multi-day penalties so the penalty is $12,250 

Count V ~ Failure to Mark or Labe-I eontainers of Hazardous \Vaste 

On Jamrnry 12,2010, the EPA Inspector observed: (1) one 55 gallon dmm of silver, 
sodium sulphite (DO II) did not have the accumulation start date, list the physical state of the 
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waste or the hazardous properties of the waste; (2) one 55 gallon drum of 0001 and F003 did not 
have an accumulation start date; and (3) one 55 gallon drum of DOOI hazardous waste did nOt 

have an acturnulation start date. 

22 C.C.R. § 66270.1(;;;) requires that each person owning or operating a facility where 
hazardous waste is transferred. treated) stored, or disposed must have a permit. At the time of 
the inspection~ Respondent did not have a permit Of grant of interim status to store hazardous 
waSte under 22 C.C.R. § 66270.1(c) [see also 40 C.F.R. § 270. 1(c)]. 

22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(a) provides that a large qU!Ultity generator may accumulate 
hazardous waste ofl-site for 90 days or less withoUT a permit or grant of interim status provided 
the generator meets certain conditions, including compliance with 22 C.CR. § 66262.34(f)) 
which requires that generators label containers with the words. "hazardous waste" and with the 
date accumulation of the waste begins, and the label must be visible for inspection [see also 40 
C.F.R. § 262.34(.)]. Under California', authorized program, generators are also required to 
label their waste with the composition and a statement that calls attention to the physical 
properties ofthe waste. 22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(1)(3) [see also 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)]. 
Generators who fail to comply with any of these conditions, induding storage ofhazardous 
waste over 90 days are subject to the permitting requirements of 22 e.CR. § 66270,1 [see also 
40 C.F.R. § 270.1J. 

Respondent's failure to meet the requirements set forth or referenced by 22 C.C.R, 
§ 66262.34 subjected it to the permit requirements of22 C.C.R. § 66270.1 [see also 40 C.F.R..§§ 
26234 and 270.1]. Respondent failed to properly mark or label hazardous waste as provided in 
22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(.), a \101ation of22 C.C.R. § 66270,1«) [see also 40 C.F.R. § 270.1«)]. 

1) Gravity-Based P ....lty 

A) Potential for Harm: Pursuant to the Penalty Policy, a "Minorll potential for harm to 
the environment and the regulatory program means that the violation poses or may pose a 
relatively low risk of exposure ofhumans or other environmental receptors to hazardous waste or 
constituents; and/or the actions may have a small adverse effect on statutory or regulatory 
purposes or procedures for implementing the RCRA. program, See Penalty Policy at i5. In the 
instant case, Complainant claims that Respondent's failure to properly mark the hazardous waste 
containers should be characterized as ":\>finor" under the Penalty Policy, As the Presiding 
Officer in this action, I agree that the potential harm resulting from this violation is properly 
characterized as "Minor" on the record before me. 

B) Extent of Deviation: A '''Minor'' deviation from the regulatory requirement means 
that the violator deviates somewhat from the regulatory or statutory requirements but most (or all 
important a<;pects) of the requirements are met. Respondent's failure to comply with the 
marking and labeling requirements constituted a "Minor" deviation, 

10 

http:66262.34
http:66262.34


The matrix value in the Penalty Policy for violations that are Minor PotentiaVMinor 
Deviation is $150 to $750. Complainant'S selection of$430, which represents the middle of the 
Minor PotentiallMinor Deviation matrix cell, is consistent with the record of the proceeding and 
with RCRA. 

2) ;l<lulti-Day Penalty Calculation 

TIiis violation continued for at least one day~ January 12,2010. Complainant is not 
seeking multi-day penalties so the penalty is $430. 

PENALTY MODIFICATION 

The Penalty Policy provides for do\mward adjustments to the proposed penalty for a 
violator's good faith efforts to comply, limited ability to pay, perfonnance ofenvironmental 
projects, or other unique factors, See Penalty Policy at 34-41. Complainant did not propose any 
adjustments to the proposed penalty because none were supported by the circwnstances of the 
violations, Respondent faned to submit any evjdence that would support any downward 
adjustment Therefore, Complainant's position is consistent with the record and RCRA. 

CONCLUSION 

After considering the record and the PenaJty Policy. 1 assess a penalty in the amount of 
$26,500.00. 

ORDER 

RESPONDENT IS HEREBY ORDERED to pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
TWENTY ·SIX THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($26,500). This penalty shaJl 
become due and payable, without further proceedings, thirty (30) days after this order becomes 
final, 'l11is Order shall become final within forty-five (45) days atter its service upon the parties 
without further proceedings, unless (1) a party appeals the Initial Decision to the Em1ronmental 
Appeals Board, (2) a p<uty moves to set aside the order, or (3) the Environmental Appeals Board 
ejects to review this Initial De<::ision on its own initiative. See 40 CPR § 22,27(c), Procedures 
for appealing this Initial Decision are listed in the Consolidated Rules at 40 CFR § 22.30. 

Payment shaH be made by fO!'Vllarding a money order, cashier's check, or certified check, in 
the amount of$26,500.00 payable to Treasurer oftbe United States of Americ. to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Fines and Penalties 


Cincinnati Finance Center 

P.O. Box 979077 


St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 


II 

http:of$26,500.00
http:26,500.00


All payments shall indicate the name of the facility, any EPA identification number of the 
facility, Respondent's name and address, and the EPA docket number for this action. At the time 
payment is made, Respondent shall send a copy of the payment transmittal to: 

RegionaJ Hearing Clerk 

U"S. Environmental Protection Agency 


Region IX, ORC 

75 HaVv1homc Street 


San Francisco, CA 94105 


If the civil penalty is not paid withln the prescribed time period, interest will be assessed 
pursuant to Section 11 ofthe Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U,S,c' § 3717, 
based on the present value of funds owed to the Cnited States Treasury at the time the Initial 
Order becomes final, and such rate will remain in effect until full pa)rmetrt is received. A six 
percent (6%) per annum late payment penalty will also be applied on any principle amount not 
paid within ninety (90) days of the due date, 

IT IS SO ORDERED 

Date; June 1,2012 
Steven L Jawgicl 
Regional Judicial oliic 
U.S. EPA, Region IX 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that the original of the fully executed Order on Motion for Default Judgment 
against L&M OPTICAL DISC WEST, LLC (Docket #: RCRA-09-2011-0003) was filed with 
the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA, Region IX, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco. CA 
94105, and that a true and correct copy of the same was sent to the following parries: 

A copy was mailed via CERTIFIED MAIL to: 

Ge.orge Lin 
Vice President 
L&M Optical Disc West, LLC 
24865 Avenue Rockefeller 
Valencia, CA 91355 

CERTIFIED MAIL NUMBER: 7010 2780 0000 8388 7795 

David Lin (Agent for Service ofProcess) 
24865 Avenue Rockefeller 
Valencia. CA 91355 

CERTIFIEDMAILNIJMBER: 7010 2780 COOO 8388 7801 

And additional copy was hand-delivered to the following U.S. EPA case attorney: 

Michael Hingerty 
Office of Regional Counsel 
U.S. EPA, Region IX 
75 Hnv.1home Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

~~..... ~ 
Bryan K. oodwin 
Region Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA, Region IX 


